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Do you take the time to request feedback from your clients and customers? If not, you could be 
missing out on an opportunity to boost repeat business. Research has shown that merely 
soliciting a review from customer increases repeat business. This is known as the mere 
solicitation effect. While such effects were known, what had not been investigated was how the 
specific wording of the request for feedback can influence a customer’s repeat purchase 
behavior. In multiple field studies, we find that repeat purchases are boosted (above and beyond 
the mere solicitation effect) when companies ask for open-ended, positive feedback at the 
beginning of a customer survey.  

Customer Feedback 

Firms have long recognized the value derived from customer feedback. With the information 
customer surveys provide, businesses are able to alter their internal operations to provide a 
superior product or service that truly meets the customer’s needs. However, the effect of surveys 
goes beyond the internal improvement of the company. Research and analysis has led companies 
to understand that soliciting customers for feedback is an ideal opportunity to engage customers 
and promote loyalty. 

A national study of 813 individual 
companies found that 86% of 
companies attempt to gather some form 
of feedback from their customers 
(MarketTools 2010). The majority of 
firms seek negative feedback (rather 
than compliments) so that they can 
identify areas in need of improvement. 
After completing countless surveys 
seeking negative feedback, the typical 
customer has been conditioned to think 
exclusively about criticisms of the 

company when providing feedback (Ofir and Simonson 2001).  

A simple way to pose a positive, open-ended question is to ask something like, “What went well 
during our last interaction?” In contrast, traditional closed-ended surveys typically ask questions 
such as, “How well did we treat you as a customer?” with a scale from very poor to excellent. 
Asking an open-ended “what went well,” rather than “how well did we do?” promotes deeper 
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thinking and allows the customer the opportunity to expound on what they liked most about their 
experience. 

When customers take time to complete a survey asking for negative feedback, they are 
reinforcing negative memories about their encounter with the company. Consequently, we 
wanted to know if companies could instead reinforce positive memories by soliciting positive 
feedback from customers, and whether this could ultimately enhance future sales.  

Psychological Measurement Effects 

Memory of an event is highly malleable; in fact “the process of remembering itself can rescript 
and reconsolidate our memories” (Sara 2000). The questions that initiate the process of 
remembering can alter our perceptions of the past (Loftus and Palmer 1974). By asking 
customers to specifically recall positive aspects of their past experiences, a new and more 
positive memory can be developed.  

Asking an open-ended positive question invites customers to reflect on the best aspects of their 
experience. Once customers have retrieved positive memories, translating that memory into 
spoken word or written text creates an effect known as “memory persistence” (Yarbrough et al. 
2013). With a newly reinforced positive memory, one would expect the customer to have a 
higher rate of repurchase from that company. This theory was tested in two field studies designed 
to observe actual repurchase behavior of customers.  

Study 1: The Effect of an Open-Ended Positive Solicitation 

In a telephone survey following a retail purchase, we asked a group of retail customers for 
positive feedback in an open-ended format (“Tell us what went well with your visit?”), followed 
by traditional closed-ended questions (“Now would you rate the quality of your service?”). We 
requested feedback from another group of customers using only the closed-ended prompts. Upon 
analysis of the customer’s total purchases in dollars over the next year, the customers who were 
first asked open-ended, positive questions on the survey spent 8.25% more than their 
counterparts. When compared with customers who were asked to complete the survey but opted 
not to complete it, the customers who received open-ended and positive questions spent 130% 
more.  

Study 2: Assessing the Increased Effect of Beginning the Survey with Positive 
Solicitation over General Solicitation 

In our second study, we used an online survey (on behalf of a new business) to assess the effects 
of written versus oral customer feedback in converting trial to actual purchase. In the online 
format, the survey measured the expected increases in purchase behavior resulting from mere 
solicitation, measurement, and the open-ended positive effect.  
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Mere solicitation of survey feedback (simply sending out a survey even if not completed by the 
customer) resulted in a statistically significant increase of purchases. An even larger boost in 
repurchase occurred if the customer actually completed the survey, supporting the mere 
measurement effect. By opening the survey with an open-ended positive question, repurchase 
further increased above the mere measurement effect. In total, customer spending increased by 
33% from the traditional closed-ended survey to the survey that led with an open-ended positive 
solicitation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Real Estate Implications  

While real estate agents do not typically deal with small purchases, they do rely heavily on 
repeat clients, referrals, and their overall reputation for excellence. Traditional surveys are 
excellent at providing insight for you to improve your service for future clients. Surveys that 
solicit positive feedback can also enhance a client’s perception of you, so take the time to ask for 
positive feedback via a formal survey or a casual conversation at closing.  

By creating a simple questionnaire that you distribute after completing your service, great 
benefits can be realized. Simply mailing or emailing a survey to your client can groom the 
client’s perceptions of you via the mere solicitation effect. Once the client completes the survey, 
the mere measurement effect solidifies lingering memories in the client’s mind and increases 
his/her likelihood of repeating business with you. To realize the greatest benefit, simply begin 
your survey by requesting positive feedback in an open-ended format, starting with questions 
like, “What went well in our interactions?” or “What did you enjoy most about your home search 
process or working with me?”  
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One important caveat: find an opportunity to listen to your customers to find out if there is 
anything you need to improve about your service. If you are not currently surveying prior clients, 
you are not alone. However, you are missing out on the opportunity to enhance perceptions of 
your services that can boost repeat clients and referrals.  
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